

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

FINAL MINUTES

6/18/2019 9:00 AM

MINUTES COMMISSION CHAMBERS 2401 SE MONTEREY ROAD, STUART, FLORIDA 34996

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Edward V. Ciampi, Chairman Harold E. Jenkins II, Vice Chairman Doug Smith Stacey Hetherington Sarah Heard Taryn Kryzda, County Administrator Krista A. Storey, Acting County Attorney Carolyn Timmann, Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller

CALL TO ORDER

Present:

5 - Chairman Edward V. Ciampi

Vice Chairman Harold E. Jenkins II

Commissioner Doug Smith

Commissioner Stacey Hetherington

Commissioner Sarah Heard

- 1. INVOCATION Pastor Anil K. Singh, Trinity United Methodist Church of Jensen Beach
- 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
- 3. ADDITIONAL ITEMS

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Smith, seconded by Vice Chairman Jenkins, for approval of the agenda with the additional items (CNST-14 and DEPT-5), the request to withdraw from the agenda (CNST-4), and the request of the applicant for PHQJ-1 (Sunrise Restaurants) be continued until July 30th. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:

- 5 Chairman Ciampi, Vice Chairman Jenkins II, Commissioner
 Smith, Commissioner Hetherington, and Commissioner Heard
- 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

PROCLAMATIONS AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS

PROC-1 PRESENT PROCLAMATIONS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED VIA THE CONSENT AGENDA

The Chairman will present the proclamations to the recipients.

Agenda Item: 19-0111

Communications Manager Laura Beaupre introduced the proclamations.

Parks and Recreation Deputy Director Mark Lynch accepted the proclamation for Parks and Recreation Month.

Kelsey Arnold (Marine Industries Association) accepted the proclamation for Treasure Coast Waterway Cleanup Week.

Risk Analyst Carolyn Brada and members of the Safety Team accepted the proclamation for Safety Awareness Month.

COMMENTS

1. PUBLIC - PLEASE LIMIT COMMENTS TO THREE MINUTES.

Lori Dunsmore (with an ASL interpreter) spoke about the impact of development on local wildlife, specifically Sandhill cranes.

Frances Rush spoke about speeding cars on Coral Gardens' residential streets. She requested that the Board consider more stop signs or traffic calming areas.

Virginia Sherlock thanked the Board for the major progress toward establishing a pet-friendly hurricane shelter. She requested that every meeting include a staff update on the glyphosate ban, and asked for more transparency on the County website. Lastly, she congratulated Commissioner Heard for winning a President's Advocacy Award from the Florida Association of Counties.

Myra Galoci, Dottie Lanci, and Regina Wood spoke in support of the reimbursement of Commissioner Heard's attorney fees (DEPT-5).

Jackie Trancynger spoke about the rescheduling of the glyphosate discussion at the last BCC meeting, which was heard earlier than its original preset time. She thanked Chairman Ciampi for his apology regarding the time change and thanked the Board for unanimously passing the ban. She spoke about problems with the new agenda program on the County's website and stressed the need to make it user-friendly for the public. Lastly, she announced that the Martin County Democratic Party had passed a resolution to not support or endorse the acceptance of donations from Big Sugar to fund any campaigns or political parties.

Tom Pine spoke about the roundabouts in Jensen Beach and the cost of beautification maintenance. He also spoke about a recent water main break in south Sewall's Point and voiced concerns about galvanized pipes leaching lead into the drinking water.

HEPATITIS A

Florida Department of Health/Marting County Interim Health Officer/Director of Nursing Carolann Wegener-Vitani provided the presentation to the Board. The presentation included information on exposure, symptoms, prevention, and the Health Department's response efforts. Public Information Officer Renay Rouse stressed the importance of prevention and encouraged people to get vaccinated.

BIG BROTHERS BIG SISTERS

Big Brothers Big Sisters CEO Yvette Flores-Acevedo spoke about their Mentoring Program and their School-to-Work/Internship Program.

2. COMMISSIONERS

ΑM

Commissioner Smith spoke about the safety of the Sandhill cranes, and assured the public that Martin County does not allow the development of wetlands. He also pointed out that the area mentioned was actually part of the City of Stuart, and therefore out of the County's control. He also spoke about a gopher tortoise that continually tries to cross Green River Parkway.

PM

Commissioner Smith spoke about water related meetings/conversations with (1) FAC and the Water Policy Working Group, and (2) NACo and the Coalition of the Five States (Texas to Florida). He shared that there are people all over the state working toward solving our water woes in Florida, and that the Five States are working on all things water, including algae issues and everything that is going on with the gulf.

Commissioner Heard spoke about the School Board's new headquarters and encouraged the Board to see how willing the School Board would be to do a pet-friendly shelter there. Chairman Ciampi asked County Administrator Taryn Kryzda to bring that to their attention.

Chairman Ciampi thanked Acting County Attorney Krista Storey for her service to the Board.

3. COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

No issues/comments at this time.

CONSENT

ADMINISTRATION

CNST-1 CONTRACTS THAT MEET THE THRESHOLD FOR BOARD APPROVAL

This item is a placeholder on all Board meeting agendas in an effort to streamline the process for items that meet the Board approval threshold. Specific items requiring approval, if any, will be provided by Supplemental Memorandum. If there are no items, a Supplemental Memorandum will not be attached.

Agenda Item: 19-0425

This item was approved by the first motion of the meeting.

Supplemental Memo (3 items)

CNST-2 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' APPROVAL OF WARRANT LIST FOR DISBURSEMENT VIA CHECKS AND ELECTRONIC PAYMENTS TO COMPLY WITH STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS

Pursuant to Chapter 136.06, Florida Statutes, checks and electronic payments issued by the Board of County Commissioners are to be recorded in the Board meeting minutes. In compliance with statutory requirements, the Warrant List is added to the Consent Agenda for approval by the Board of County Commissioners. This Warrant List is for disbursements made between May 17, 2019 and May 31, 2019. Additional details related to these disbursements may be viewed in the office of the Martin County Clerk of Court and Comptroller or on the Clerk's website.

Agenda Item: 19-0427

This item was approved by the first motion of the meeting.

CNST-3 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSION MINUTES TO BE APPROVED

The Board is asked to approve minutes from the June 4, 2019 Regular Board of County Commission meeting.

Agenda Item: 19-0483

This item was approved by the first motion of the meeting.

CNST-4 VALUE ADJUSTMENT BOARD APPOINTMENT

After solicitation of applicants, the Board is asked to make the necessary appointment to the Value Adjustment Board.

Agenda Item: 19-0269

This item was withdrawn by the first motion of the meeting.

CNST-5 CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY LICENSING BOARD APPOINTMENTS

After solicitation of applicants, the Board is asked to make the necessary appointments to the Construction Industry Licensing Board.

Agenda Item: 19-0492

RESOLUTION NO. 19-6.6

This item was approved by the first motion of the meeting.

CNST-6 COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT

The Board is asked to confirm Commissioner Jenkins' appointment to the Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Committee.

Agenda Item: 19-0595

This item was approved by the first motion of the meeting.

CNST-7 NOTED ITEMS

Noted items are documents for the Board's information that must be a part of the record but do not require any action.

Agenda Item: 19-0428

This item was approved by the first motion of the meeting.

CNST-8 ADOPT PROCLAMATIONS TO BE PRESENTED ON JULY 30, 2019

The Board is asked to adopt the following proclamations: congratulating Smokey Bear on his 75th birthday and declaring Purple Heart Day in Martin County, Florida.

Agenda Item: 19-0289

This item was approved by the first motion of the meeting.

CNST-9 APPROVE THE STATE HOUSING INITIATIVE PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM (SHIP) 15-16 REPORT AND TRANSMITTAL TO THE STATE

This is a request for review and approval for submittal of SHIP 2015/2016 Final Close Out Report. The annual report for this program is ready for submission to the Florida Housing Finance Corporation (FHFC). Approval of the reports by the Board of County Commissioners (Board) is required for submission.

Agenda Item: 19-0303

This item was approved by the first motion of the meeting.

GROWTH MANAGEMENT

CNST-10 REQUEST RELEASE OF THE UNITY OF TITLE FOR MARTIN COMMERCE CENTER AT GRAN PARK WEST

Martin Homes, Inc. is requesting the release of a Unity of Title for Martin Commerce Center at Gran Park West located at 3193 SE Gran Park Way in Port Salerno.

Agenda Item: 19-0533

RESOLUTION NO. 19-6.7

This item was approved by the first motion of the meeting.

PUBLIC WORKS

CNST-11 REQUEST THAT THE COUNTY GRANT A UTILITY EASEMENT TO FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY (FPL) FOR ELECTRICAL SERVICE TO FEED THE NEW STUART JET CENTER WEST BUILDING AT WITHAM FIELD

FPL has requested an easement for service to feed the new Stuart Jet Center West

6/18/19 FINAL MINUTES Page 5 of 13

building at Witham Field.

Agenda Item: 19-0534

RESOLUTION NO. 19-6.8

This item was approved by the first motion of the meeting.

CNST-12 ACCEPTANCE OF A UTILITY EASEMENT FROM TED GLASRUD ASSOCIATES FL, LLC, FOR WATER AND FIRE SERVICES AND UTILITY RELATED EQUIPMENT WITHIN THE TREASURE COAST COMMERCE CENTER

This is a request for the adoption of a Resolution accepting and approving a Utility Easement from Ted Glasrud Associates FL, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, for water and fire services and utility related equipment on Lots 14 and 15 to service property within the Treasure Coast Commerce Center, south of SW Blue Water Way and east of SW Jack James Drive.

Agenda Item: 19-0549

RESOLUTION NO. 19-6.10

This item was approved by the first motion of the meeting.

UTILITIES AND SOLID WASTE

CNST-13 INITIAL ASSESSMENT RESOLUTION FOR THE PALM LAKE PARK WATER MAIN MUNICIPAL SERVICE BENEFIT UNIT

Board action is requested to adopt the initial assessment resolution for the Palm Lake Park Water Main Municipal Service Benefit Unit to allow installation of water lines.

Agenda Item: 19-0547

This item was approved by the first motion of the meeting.

PARKS AND RECREATION

CNST-14 CONTRACT WITH EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF INDIAN RIVER, MARTIN AND OKEECHOBEE COUNTIES TO OFFER NO COST SUMMER CAMP TO ELIGIBLE FAMILIES

The Early Learning Coalition of Indian River, Martin, and Okeechobee Counties (ELC) offers a program for reimbursement funding to providers who implement fee-based after school/summer programming. The ELC reimburses providers based on fees charged to the public for services. The ELC contracts with Martin County for the Jensen Beach Summer Camp at Langford Park located at 2369 NE Dixie Highway, Jensen Beach. The ELC provides a full reimbursement to Martin County for camp fees incurred by eligible families as determined by the ELC.

Agenda Item: 19-0628

This item was approved by the first motion of the meeting.

Additional Item

PUBLIC HEARINGS

PH-1 LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER TRANSMITTAL OF COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT (CPA) 19-3, MARTIN COUNTY FAIRGROUND UTILITIES, AND CPA 19-14 SANITARY SEWER SERVICES ELEMENT

Application CPA 19-03, Fairgrounds Utilities Extension and CPA 19-14, Chapter 10, Sanitary Sewer Services Element. The combined text amendment proposes a text amendment to Chapter 4, Future Land Use Element; Chapter 10, Sanitary Sewer Services Element, and Chapter 11, Potable Water Service Element/10 Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan to allow for the provision of water and sewer services to the future location of the Fairgrounds. It also proposes amended policies to improve consistency between Chapter 10, Sanitary Sewer Services Element and Chapter 11, Potable Water Service Element/10 Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan. Other modifications include removing references to Indiantown.

Agenda Item: 19-0551

Principal Planner Samantha Lovelady and Growth Management Director Nicki van Vonno provided the staff's presentation and outlined the amendments and text changes for the Board.

The following member of the public addressed the Board on this item: Tom Pine.

MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Smith, seconded by Vice Chairman Jenkins, to approve staff's recommendation. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:

 4 - Chairman Ciampi, Vice Chairman Jenkins II, Commissioner Smith, and Commissioner Hetherington

Nay: 1 - Commissioner Heard

Supplemental Memo

PUBLIC HEARING QUASI-JUDICIAL

PHQJ-1 SUNRISE RESTAURANTS, LLC REZONING (C110-007)

This is a request by Sunrise Restaurants, LLC for approval of an amendment to the county zoning atlas. A zoning district change from the R-3A Liberal Multiple-Family District to the LC Limited Commercial District, or the most appropriate zoning district, is requested for an approximate 2.29-acre parcel located at 4000 NE Indian River Drive, approximately 1,000 feet north of the intersection of NE Indian River Drive and NE Causeway Boulevard in Jensen Beach. Included is a request for a Certificate of Public Facilities Exemption.

Agenda Item: 19-0509

This item was continued to July 30th by the first motion of the meeting.

PHQJ-2 WEST STUART BUSINESS CENTER REQUEST FOR REVISED FINAL SITE PLAN APPROVAL

West Stuart Business Center, LLC is requesting revised major final site plan approval for the development of a 91,924 square foot office and warehouse complex and the

associated infrastructure on an approximate 8.5-acre parcel located in the Ellipse industrial park located between Interstate I-95 and Florida's Turnpike in Stuart. Included with this application is a request for a Certificate of Public Facilities Reservation and a request for a parking rate adjustment pursuant to Section 4.625 LDR.

Agenda Item: 19-0530

RESOLUTION NO. 19-6.12

Ex parte communication disclosures were made by all five commissioners. There were no interveners. The proof of notification was filed at the LPA meeting. The participants were sworn in by the deputy clerk.

COUNTY: Principal Planner Peter Walden provided the staff's presentation to the Board.

The following County Exhibits were entered into the record: (1) agenda item/staff report, (2) Peter Walden resume.

APPLICANT: Engineering Design Construction Vice President Brad Currie adressed the Board in agreement with staff's presentation.

Chairman Ciampi solicited public comment; none was heard.

MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Heard, seconded by Commissioner Smith, for approval of the item. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:

5 - Chairman Ciampi, Vice Chairman Jenkins II, Commissioner Smith, Commissioner Hetherington, and Commissioner Heard

DEPARTMENTAL

ADMINISTRATION

<u>DEPT-1</u> OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET ITEMS WHICH REQUIRE BOARD APPROVAL

This is a placeholder on all Board meeting agendas to streamline the process for grant applications, awards, budget resolutions, budget transfers from reserves, and CIP amendments. Specific items requiring approval, if any, will be provided by Supplemental Memorandum.

Agenda Item: 19-0430

RESOLUTION NOs. 19-6.13, 19-6.14, 19-6.15, 19-6.16, and 19-6.17

Director of the Office of Management and Budget Jennifer Manning presented the following items to the Board: (1) Tuckahoe Mansion seawall replacement, (2) Airport Maintenance Facility and Equipment Storage grant amendment #1, (3) Airport Stormwater Improvements grant, (4) Old Palm City Eco Art Stormwater Water Quality Retrofit Project grant, (5) Children's Services Council AS/OS Program grant, and (6) Half-Cent Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Series 2019) allocations.

MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Smith, seconded by Commissioner Hetherington, for approval of items 1 through 5. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:

5 - Chairman Ciampi, Vice Chairman Jenkins II, Commissioner Smith, Commissioner Hetherington, and Commissioner Heard

Agenda Item: 19-0430

MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Smith, seconded by Vice Chairman Jenkins, for approval of item #6. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:

4 - Chairman Ciampi, Vice Chairman Jenkins II, Commissioner Smith, and Commissioner Hetherington

Nay: 1 - Commissioner Heard

Supplemental Memo (6 items)

DEPT-2 APPROVE MODIFICATIONS TO THE INVESTMENT POLICY AND ADOPT A RESOLUTION TO INCORPORATE CHANGES ACCORDINGLY

The Board of County Commissioners (Board) approved modifications to the Martin County (County) Investment Policy (Policy) on February 3, 2009. The Policy follows Florida Statutes which have been modified over the past ten years. The proposed Policy revisions are primarily focused on 'cleaning-up' language, providing for consistency and bringing the Policy up-to-date with current rules and regulations.

Agenda Item: 19-0538

RESOLUTION NO. 19-6.11

Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller Carolyn Timmann provided the presentation to the Board. The presentation included: the Clerk's authority and duties, background/history, thresholds, yields, and highlights of the recommended revisions to the policy.

The following Clerk's Office staff members participated in creation of the policy modifications: Deputy Chief of Operations Tom O'Reilly, Director of Finance Sandra Smith and Chief Deputy of Operations Cheri Vancura, and Internal Auditor Hank Nagel (Mr. Nagel did not attend the presentation).

Hilltop Securities Asset Management Director/Senior Portfolio Manager Greg Warner provided an overview of the revisions of significance: benchmarks, performance measurements, ethical standards, and authorized investments to be added (commercial paper, corporate obligations/bonds, and municipal obligations).

Chairman Ciampi solicited public comment; none was heard.

MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Hetherington, seconded by Commissioner Smith, to approve the revisions and the correlating resolution. The motion carried by the following vote: Aye:

5 - Chairman Ciampi, Vice Chairman Jenkins II, Commissioner Smith,
 Commissioner Hetherington, and Commissioner Heard

DEPT-3 APPROVE A CONTRACT WITH MS. SARAH WOODS FOR THE POSITION OF COUNTY ATTORNEY

On May 21, 2019 the Board of County Commissioners (Board) directed the County Administrator to begin contract negotiations with Ms. Sarah Woods for the County Attorney position. A contract has been developed and is being presented to the Board for approval.

Agenda Item: 19-0566

County Administrator Taryn Kryzda presented the item to the Board.

Chairman Ciampi solicited public comment; none was heard.

MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Smith, seconded by Commissioner Hetherington, for approval of staff's recommendation. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:

5 - Chairman Ciampi, Vice Chairman Jenkins II, Commissioner Smith, Commissioner Hetherington, and Commissioner Heard

Supplemental Memo

UTILITIES AND SOLID WASTE

DEPT-4 REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION TO NEGOTIATE RENEWAL AGREEMENT FOR SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES WITH OKEECHOBEE LANDFILL, INC. (OLI)

Staff is requesting authorization to negotiate an eight (8) year renewal term with OLI for the hauling and disposal of Class I Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) from the Solid Waste Transfer Station to the Okeechobee Landfill.

Agenda Item: 19-0561

Utilities & Solid Waste Director Sam Amerson presented the item to the Board.

Deputy County Administrator Don Donaldson informed the Board that staff expected to have the agreement negotiated long before the expiration of the current contract.

Chairman Ciampi solicited public comment; none was heard.

MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Smith, seconded by Vice Chairman Jenkins, for staff's recommendation with the two 'whereas' or the ideas under the recommendation and the three additional bullet pointed comments. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:

5 - Chairman Ciampi, Vice Chairman Jenkins II, Commissioner Smith,
 Commissioner Hetherington, and Commissioner Heard

ADMINISTRATION

DEPT-5 DISCUSSION OF LEGAL DEFENSE EXPENSES THAT WERE INCURRED BY COMMISSIONER SARAH HEARD IN CASE NO. 2017-MM-3744

Commissioner Sarah Heard faced criminal charges for alleged violations of Florida's public records laws in connection with the performance of her duties as a County Commissioner. Commissioner Heard was acquitted of all charges on April 12, 2019. Commissioner Heard has requested an item for the Board of County Commissioners to discuss reimbursement of her legal defense expenditures.

Agenda Item: 19-0589

Commissioner Hetherington recapped her history as a consultant for Lake Point and requested an opinion from the County Attorney regarding whether she had a conflict on this item.

Acting County Attorney Krista Storey read from Florida Statutes and offered her opinion that Commissioner Hetherington was obligated to participate and vote on the matter.

County Administrator Taryn Kryzda provided the introduction to the item. Acting County Attorney Krista Storey and Senior Assistant County Attorney Elysse Elder presented the item to the Board.

Attorneys Jordan Wagner, Richard Kibbey, and Barbara Kibbey-Wagner addressed the Board regarding the case, the research and work involved, and the reasonableness of their fees. All three attorneys urged the Board to choose a lawyer/law firm that they could work with to resolve the issue.

The following members of the public spoke in support of paying Commissioner Heard's legal fees item: Jackie Trancynger, Virginia Sherlock, and Paul Laura.

MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Smith, seconded by Vice Chairman Jenkins, to accept staff's recommendation and proceed with the direction that has been given to us by both our Administrator and County Attorney. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:

4 - Chairman Ciampi, Vice Chairman Jenkins II, Commissioner Smith, and Commissioner Hetherington

Abstain: 1 - Commissioner Heard

Additional Item

DEPARTMENTAL QUASI-JUDICIAL

GROWTH MANAGEMENT

DPQJ-1 HUMANE SOCIETY OF THE TREASURE COAST SEPTIC SYSTEM WAIVER

The Humane Society of the Treasure Coast, Inc is requesting approval of a waiver of Policy 10.2A.8.1 of the Comprehensive Growth Management Plan, which applies to on-site sewage treatment and disposal systems outside the primary urban service

district that exceed a total site buildout flow of 2,000 gallons per day (GPD), not to exceed total site buildout of 5,000 GPD. The approximate 15.42 acre parcel is located on the west side of SW Leighton Farm Avenue approximately 2,700 feet south of SW Martin Highway in Palm City.

Agenda Item: 19-0539

RESOLUTION NO. 19-6.18

Ex parte communication disclosures were made by all five commissioners. There were no interveners. There were no notices required. The participants were sworn in by the deputy clerk.

COUNTY: Senior Planner Matt Stahley provided the staff's presentation to the Board.

The following County Exhibits were entered into the record: (1) agenda item/staff report, (2) Matt Stahley resume.

APPLICANT: Attorney Terry McCarthy addressed the Board on behalf of the applicant regarding the plans to enhance the facility and requested the Board's approval.

Chairman Ciampi solicited public comment; none was heard.

MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Smith, seconded by Vice Chairman Jenkins, to approve staff's recommendation. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye:

5 - Chairman Ciampi, Vice Chairman Jenkins II, Commissioner Smith, Commissioner Hetherington, and Commissioner Heard

DPQJ-2 HINCKLEY YACHTS REQUEST FOR TEMPORARY CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

Pursuant to Section 10.1.C.3.b., LDR, Hinckley Yachts is requesting a temporary certificate of occupancy for its boat storage building prior to completing all of the required site improvements.

Agenda Item: 19-0546

Ex parte communication disclosures were made by all five commissioners. There were no interveners. There were no notices required. The participants were sworn in by the deputy clerk.

COUNTY: Growth Management Deputy Director Paul Schilling provided the staff's presentation to the Board.

The following County Exhibits were entered into the record: (1) agenda item/staff report, (2) Paul Schilling resume.

APPLICANT: Lucido and Associates Senior Vice President Morris Crady and Hinckley Yachts Vice President of Service Tim Shields provided the applicant's presentation and thanked the Board for their consideration.

MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Smith, seconded by

6/18/19 FINAL MINUTES Page 12 of 13

Commissioner Hetherington, for staff recommendation. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 4 - Chairman Ciampi, Vice Chairman Jenkins II, Commissioner Smith,

and Commissioner Hetherington

Nay: 1 - Commissioner Heard

PUBLIC - PLEASE LIMIT COMMENTS TO THREE MINUTES.

No comments at this time.

ADJOURN

The Board of County Commissioners meeting of June 18, 2019 adjourned at 3:57 p.m.

Carolyn Timmann, Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller /mkv

Edward V. Ciampi, Chairman Board of County Commissioners

Minutes approved:

This document may be reproduced upon request in an alternative format by contacting the County ADA Coordinator (772) 320-3131, the County Administration Office (772) 288-5400, Florida Relay 711, or by completing our accessibility feedback form at www.martin.fl.us/accessibility-feedback

6/18/19 FINAL MINUTES Page 13 of 13